

PUBLIC HEALTH ALERT: POSSIBLE MEASLES EXPOSURE

WRHA Population and Public Health, in partnership with the University of Manitoba is informing you that you may have been exposed to a case of red measles, if you were in any of the following locations on **Thursday, March 20, 2014**:

 Location
 Time Period

 St. Paul's College Rm 215
 11:30 am - 1 pm

 Machray Hall Rm 418
 1 pm - 2:30 pm

 EITC-E2 Rm 105
 4 pm - 5:30 pm

 Frank Kennedy Study Hall
 2:30-4 & 5:15 pm - 8 pm

If you were in any of these areas at the times listed we recommend you:

- Check your measles immunization records. If you are not sure of your immunization status or are not fully immunized against measles, contact your health-care provider or public health office (see list below).
 Note:
 - Those born before 1970: individuals are presumed to be immune to measles and vaccine is not routinely recommended.
 - Those born in or after 1970: we recommend **two** doses of measles-containing vaccine (given as the MMR vaccine). If you are known to be immune to measles from previous infection, the vaccine is not required.
- If you were born in or after 1970, are not immune, and have never received any
 measles-containing vaccine, you should not attend University until you have received
 at least one dose of MMR vaccine.
 If you have received only one dose of measles-containing vaccine in the past, you can
 - still attend University, but are recommended to receive a second dose of MMR vaccine as soon as possible.
- 3. Watch for signs and symptoms of measles. They can occur anytime from 7-21 days after you were exposed to measles. Initial symptoms of measles may include:
 - tever,
 - runny nose,
 - drowsiness,
 - irritability
 - red eyes.
 - Several days later a red, blotchy rash appears on the face and progresses down the body.
- 4. If you develop any of the above symptoms, it is important to stay home from work or school and call your local public health nurse (see list below) Mon-Fri 8:30-4:30 or call Health Links-Info-Santé at 204-788-8200.

- 5. If you have symptoms of measles and need to visit a health care provider in their office or emergency room, **call ahead to advise them that you may have measles**. This will allow the facility to take precautions to avoid exposing other people.
- 6. Please read the attached fact sheet for additional information about measles and the MMR vaccine.

Community Area OFFICE	ADDRESS	PHONE
St. James - Assiniboia	2nd Floor, 2015 Portage Avenue	204-940-2040
Assiniboine South	3401 Roblin Blvd	204-940-1950
Fort Garry	2989 Pembina Hwy	204-940-2015
St. Vital	6-845 Dakota Street	204-940-2045
St. Boniface	240-614 Des Meurons	204-940-2035
Transcona	845 Regent Ave West	204-940-2055
River East	975 Henderson Hwy	204-948-5200
Seven Oaks	3-1050 Leila Ave	204-938-5600
Inkster	785 Keewatin Street	204-938-5900
Point Douglas	601 Aikins Street	204-940-2025
Downtown East	640 Main Street	204-940-8711
Downtown West	640 Main Street	204-940-6669
River Heights	677 Stafford Ave	204-938-5500

If you have any further questions or concerns please contact your local public health office Mon-Fri 8:30-4:30 or call Health Links-Info-Santé at 204-788-8200

Measles

Public Health Branch – Factsheet

Immunization has saved more lives in Canada in the last 50 years than any other medical intervention. Vaccines help your immune system to recognize and fight bacteria and viruses that cause diseases.

What is measles?

Measles is a viral infection that results in a red blotchy rash, high fever (38.3C or higher), red eyes, runny nose and cough that can last for up to two weeks. The rash appears 3-7 days after the fever starts, beginning on the face and spreading down the body. Some people also get a middle ear infection or pneumonia. Although rare, measles can lead to swelling of the brain, which can cause seizures, hearing loss, brain damage or even death.

Measles can be more severe in infants, children younger than 5 years, and adults over the age of 20 and can be life threatening.

There is no cure for measles. Current treatment focuses on relieving the symptoms.

If you or your child develops any of the above symptoms, it is important to stay home from work, school or child care and CALL your primary health care provider's office PRIOR to your visit to minimize contact with your health care provider's other patients.

How is measles spread?

Measles is highly contagious and can spread easily through the air, or through contact with fluids in the nose or throat. The virus can pass from person to person by coughing, sneezing, or sharing food or drinks. Children may become infected by sharing soothers, bottles or toys that have been in the mouths of other children.

An infected person is contagious and able to spread the virus from four days before the rash appears to four days after.

Prevention

Immunization is the best way to protect you and your children against measles. All children 12 months of age or older should get the MMR vaccine, which also protects against mumps and rubella. The MMR vaccine contains weakened forms of the measles, mumps and rubella viruses that do not cause disease. The vaccine is approved by Health Canada.

When you and your child are immunized, you also help protect others because someone who is immunized is less likely to spread infection.

Other precautions you can take: avoid sharing personal items such as water bottles, lip gloss and cigarettes; cover your nose and mouth with your forearm or tissue when you cough or sneeze; and, wash your hands often with soap and water or clean them with alcohol-based sanitizer if soap and water are not available, especially after coughing or sneezing.

Who should get the MMR vaccine?

It is important to ensure that you and your child(ren) are immunized against measles.

Children 12 months to 17 years of age:

Two doses of MMR should be given for immunization of children and adolescents.

Adults 18 years of age and older: adults born before 1970 are generally presumed to have acquired natural immunity to measles; however, some of these individuals may be susceptible. Adults without contraindications, born in 1970 or later who do not have documented evidence of receiving measles-containing vaccine on or after their first birthday, or laboratory evidence of immunity, or a history of laboratory confirmed measles infection should be immunized with one dose of MMR.



¹ The Public Health Agency of Canada

If you are a health care worker, student, military personnel or traveller, talk to your health care provider. You may require 2 doses of MMR vaccine.

Who should NOT get the MMR vaccine? Pregnant women.

Anyone who has had a severe allergic reaction to a previous dose of the MMR vaccine, or to any of the contents of the vaccine (ex. neomycin).

Anyone with a severely weakened immune system. But, anyone with HIV infection should check with their doctor about getting the MMR vaccine.

Anyone who had immune globulins or any other blood products in the past year should speak to their doctor or public health nurse before getting the MMR vaccine.

Anyone who has any of the following should speak with a doctor or public health nurse before they are given the MMR vaccine:

- a severe allergy to eggs
- thrombocytopenia (low platelets)
- a history of convulsions (or family history)

Anyone who currently has a high fever should not be immunized. But the vaccine can still be given if the illness is mild, like a cold.

Women should avoid pregnancy for at least one month after they get the MMR vaccine.

Possible side-effects of the MMR vaccine

Vaccines are known to be very safe. It is much safer for your child to get the vaccine than to get measles.

Common reactions to the vaccine include soreness, redness and swelling where the vaccine was given. A red rash may also appear between 5 and 12 days after the vaccine is given, but it disappears by itself and does not spread to other people.

Some children may have swelling of the glands in the head and neck, fever, drowsiness, fussiness, loss of appetite or an upset stomach. These are generally mild reactions and usually last one to two days.

Temporary joint pain may occur in teenage and adult women. Occasionally a high fever can cause seizures.

Acetaminophen (Tylenol®) or Ibuprofen (Advil®) can be given for fever or soreness.

ASA (Aspirin®) should NEVER be given to children because it can cause a severe liver and brain disease called Reye's Syndrome.

Rarely, mild, temporary blood clotting problems have been reported. In very rare cases, a child may have inflammation of the brain (encephalitis) or deafness. This is so uncommon (about one case per million doses), that it is uncertain whether the vaccine is the cause.

It is important to stay in the clinic for 15 minutes after getting any vaccine because there is a rare possibility of a severe allergic reaction. This can include hives, difficulty breathing, or swelling of the throat, tongue or lips. If this happens after you leave the clinic, call 911 or go to the nearest emergency department for immediate treatment. Report any serious or unexpected side effects to a public health nurse or doctor.

For more information on measles:

Talk to your doctor, nurse practitioner or public health nurse.

Call Health Links-Info Santé in Winnipeg at 204-788-8200; toll-free elsewhere in Manitoba 1-888-315-9257.

Or. visit:

Manitoba Public Health website

www.gov.mb.ca/health/publichealth/index.html

Public Health Agency of Canada website www.phac-aspc.gc.ca/im/index-eng.php

